
Planning
Committee

Wed 16 Oct
2019
7.00 pm

Council Chamber
Town Hall
Redditch

Public Document Pack



If you have any queries on this Agenda please contact 

Sarah Sellers

Town Hall, Walter Stranz Square, Redditch, B98 8AH
Tel: (01527) 64252 (Ext. 2884)

email:  sarah.sellers@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk
 

mailto:sarah.sellers@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk


REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL
PLANNING COMMITTEE

GUIDANCE ON PUBLIC SPEAKING

The process approved by the Council for public speaking at meetings of the 
Planning Committee is (subject to the discretion and control of the Chair) as 
summarised below:

in accordance with the running order detailed in this agenda and updated by the 
separate Update report:

1) Introduction of application by Chair

2) Officer presentation of the report (as originally printed; updated in the later 
Update Report; and updated orally by the Planning Officers at the meeting).

3) Public Speaking - in the following order:-

a)  Objectors to speak on the application;
b)  Supporters to speak on the application;
c)  Ward Councillors
d)  Applicant (or representative) to speak on the application.

Speakers will be called in the order they have notified their interest in 
speaking to the Democratic Services Team (by 12 noon on the day of the 
meeting) and invited to the table or lectern.

 Each individual speaker will have up to a maximum of 3 minutes to speak, 
subject to the discretion of the Chair. (Please press button on “conference 
unit” to activate microphone.)

 Each group of supporters or objectors with a common interest will have up to a 
maximum of 10 minutes to speak, subject to the discretion of the Chair.

  
 After each of a), b) and c) above, Members may put relevant questions to the 

speaker, for clarification. (Please remain at the table in case of questions.)

4) Members’ questions to the Officers and formal debate / determination. 



Notes: 

1) Reports on all applications will include a summary of the responses received 
from consultees and third parties, an appraisal of the main planning issues 
and a recommendation.  All submitted plans and documentation for each 
application, including consultee responses and third party representations, 
are available to view in full via the Public Access facility on the Council’s 
website www.redditchbc.gov.uk 

2) It should be noted that, in coming to its decision, the Committee can only take 
into account planning issues, namely policies contained in the Borough of 
Redditch Local Plan No. 4 and other material considerations, which include 
Government Guidance and other relevant policies published since the 
adoption of the Development Plan and the “environmental factors” (in the 
broad sense) which affect the site.  

3) Members of the public may record all or part of this meeting either by making 
an audio recording, taking photographs, filming or making notes.  An area 
next to the Press table has been set aside for any members of the public who 
wish to film or record.  The Council asks that any recording of the meeting is 
done from this area to avoid disruption.  Recording or filming of meetings is 
not authorised when the Committee is considering exempt/confidential 
information.  For agenda items that are exempt, the public will be asked to 
leave the Chamber 

4) Once the formal meeting opens, members of the public are requested to 
remain within the Public Gallery and may only address Committee Members 
and Officers via the formal public speaking route.

5) Late circulation of additional papers is not advised and is subject to the 
Chair’s agreement.  The submission of any significant new information might 
lead to a delay in reaching a decision.  The deadline for papers to be received 
by Planning Officers is 4.00 p.m. on the Friday before the meeting.

6) Anyone wishing to address the Planning Committee on applications on this 
agenda must notify the Democratic Services Team on 01527 64252 Extn.2884 
or email on:  sarah.sellers@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk  before 12 noon 
on the day of the meeting. 

Further assistance:

If you require any further assistance prior to the meeting, please contact the 
Democratic Services Officer (indicated on the inside front cover), Head of Legal, 
Equalities and Democratic Services, or Planning Officers, at the same address.

At the meeting, these Officers will normally be seated either side of the Chair.

The Chair’s place is at the front left-hand corner of the Committee table as viewed 
from the Public Gallery. 

pubspk.doc updated Aug 2017(JS)

http://www.redditchbc.gov.uk/
mailto:sarah.sellers@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk


Planning
COMMITTEE

Wednesday, 16th October, 2019
7.00 pm

Council Chamber - Town Hall 
Redditch

Agenda Membership:
Cllrs: Michael Chalk (Chair)

Gemma Monaco (Vice-Chair)
Brandon Clayton
Andrew Fry
Bill Hartnett

Anthony Lovell
Nyear Nazir
Gareth Prosser
Jennifer Wheeler

1. Apologies  

2. Declarations of Interest  

To invite Councillors to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and / or Other 
Disclosable Interests they may have in items on the agenda, and to confirm the nature of 
those interests.

3. Confirmation of Minutes of the Planning Committee held on 18th September 
2019 (Pages 1 - 6) 

4. Update Reports  

To note Update Reports (if any) for the Planning Applications to be considered at the meeting 
(circulated prior to the commencement of the meeting)

5. Application 19/00134/FUL - Land at Junction of Ipsley Street, Station Way and 
Evesham Street, Redditch, Worcestershire, B98 7AJ - J. Bishton (Pages 7 - 26) 



This page is intentionally left blank



Planning
Committee

Wednesday, 18 September 2019

Chair

1

MINUTES Present:

Councillor Michael Chalk (Chair), Councillor Gemma Monaco (Vice-
Chair) and Councillors Brandon Clayton, Bill Hartnett, Anthony Lovell, 
Nyear Nazir, Gareth Prosser and Jennifer Wheeler

Also Present:

Officers:

Helena Plant, Amar Hussain and Simon Jones

Democratic Services Officer:

Sarah Sellers

32. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

In relation to agenda item 5 Councillors Brandon Clayton, Anthony 
Lovell, Gemma Monaco, Gareth Prosser and Jennifer Wheeler 
declared an Other Disclosable Interest in that they were acquainted 
with the speaker Lee McKenzie in their capacity as Councillors. 
Councillors Clayton, Lovell, Monaco, Prosser and Wheeler 
remained and considered and voted on these matters.

In relation to agenda item 5 Councillor Bill Hartnett declared an 
Other Disclosable Interest in that he was acquainted with the 
speaker Lee McKenzie in his capacity as a Councillor and that he 
was a member of the board for Redditch Co-operative Homes (a 
division of Accord Housing Association). Councillor Hartnett left the 
room during consideration of this application and took no part in the 
debate or vote.

In relation to agenda items 6 and 7 Councillor Anthony Lovell 
declared an Other Disclosable Interest in that he had previously 
expressed views regarding the scheme and was a member of the 
Eastern Gateway Steering Group. Councillor Lovell moved to the 
public gallery and took no part in the debate or vote for agenda 
items 6 and 7.

Page 1 Agenda Item 3



Planning
Committee Wednesday, 18 September 2019

In relation to agenda items 6 and 7 Councillor Gareth Prosser 
declared an Other Disclosable Interest in that he had previously 
expressed views regarding the scheme. Councillor Prosser moved 
to the public gallery and took no part in the debate or vote for 
agenda items 6 or 7.

In relation to agenda item 9  Councillor Anthony Lovell declared an 
Other Disclosable Interest in that he was familiar with the property 
and had had dealings with the local residents in his capacity as 
Ward Member for Winyates. Councillors Lovell remained and 
considered and voted on these matters.

33. APOLOGIES 

There were no apologies or substitutes.

34. CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE 
PLANNING COMMITTEE HELD ON 14TH AUGUST 2019 

RESOLVED that

The Minutes of the meeting of the Planning Committees held 
on 14th August 2019 be confirmed as a correct record and 
signed by the Chair.

35. UPDATE REPORTS 

There was no Update Report.

36. APPLICATION 19/00835/FUL - LAND AT WEST AVENUE 
SMALLWOOD REDDITCH B98 7DH -  MR D BROADBENT 

Proposed development of 6 no. self-contained flats

Officers presented the report and outlined the application.  At the 
request of the Chair Ms Lee McKenzie on behalf of Sandycroft 
addressed the Committee under the Councils Public Speaking 
rules.

In considering the application Members referred to a number of 
issues including the topography of the site, the availability of 
amenity space, the level of parking spaces provided on site, access 
issues and potential for impact of the development on other 
buildings in the vicinity and those that use them.

In responding to these points officers advised that the Committee 
that there had been no objections to the scheme on highways 
grounds by County Council Highways, that the site had been 
allocated for residential use in the Redditch Local Plan No 4 under 

Page 2 Agenda Item 3



Planning
Committee Wednesday, 18 September 2019

Policy 4 and that in 2015 Members had granted planning 
permission for an identical scheme.

RESOLVED that:-

Having regard to the development plan and to all other material 
considerations planning permission be GRANTED subject to 
the conditions and informatives set out on pages 11 to 15 of 
the agenda.

[In relation to this agenda item Councillors Brandon Clayton, 
Anthony Lovell, Gemma Monaco, Gareth Prosser and Jennifer 
Wheeler declared an Other Disclosable Interest in that they were 
acquainted with the speaker Lee McKenzie in their capacity as 
Councillors. Councillors Clayton, Lovell, Monaco, Prosser and 
Wheeler remained and considered and voted on these matters.]

[In relation to this agenda item Councillor Bill Hartnett declared an 
Other Disclosable Interest in that he was acquainted with the 
speaker Lee McKenzie in his capacity as a Councillor and that he 
was a memebr of the board for Redditch Co-operative Homes (a 
division of Accord Housing Association). Councillor Hartnett left the 
room during consideration of this application and took no part in the 
debate or vote.]
 

37. CONSULTATION ON PLANNING APPLICATION REFERENCE 
19/00615/OUT BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL AND 
19/01545/REM STRATFORD-ON-AVON DISTRICT COUNCIL - 
REDDITCH GATEWAY, LAND ADJACENT TO THE A4023 
COVENTRY HIGHWAY - STOFORD GORCOTT LIMITED 

Officers presented the report and explained that the matter had 
come back to committee following consideration at the Planning 
Committee meeting in August solely on the issue of appearance. In 
particular, to allow members to comment as part of the consultation 
being carried out by Bromsgrove District Council and Stratford-on-
Avon District Council on the proposed colour palette for the walls 
and roof.  Officers explained that paler colours had been selected 
for the main areas with contrasting colours to be used in other 
areas including the offices and the edge of the roofline.  

In making this choice of colours the developer had sought to enable 
the building to blend into the skyline when viewed from a long 
distance, to assimilate with the nearby commercial buildings at 
Ravensbank Business Park and to present a crisp and modern 
appearance that would be attractive to future investors and 
occupiers.

Page 3 Agenda Item 3



Planning
Committee Wednesday, 18 September 2019

Members had the opportunity to view samples of the materials that 
would be used.

In responding to questions from Members, officers confirmed that 
the separation distance from the nearest residential properties at 
Kingahm Close would be circa 255m.  The view from this location 
would be dissected by a number of features including trees and 
vegetation, and officers supported the use of proposed colour 
scheme. 

RESOLVED that

1. Redditch Borough Council raise no objection to the 
reserved matters applications cited above with respect 
to appearance; and

2. Members endorse the comments made under the 
heading “Officer Appraisal” on page 20 of the agenda.

[In relation to this agenda item Councillor Anthony Lovell declared 
an Other Disclosable Interest in that he had previously expressed 
views and was a member of the Eastern Gateway Steering Group. 
Councillor Lovell moved to the public gallery and took no part in the 
debate or vote]

[In relation to this agenda item Councillor Gareth Prosser declared 
an Other Disclosable Interest in that he had previously expressed 
views regarding the scheme. Councillor Prosser moved to the 
public gallery and took no part in the debate or vote]

38. CONSULTATION ON PLANNING APPLICATION REFERENCE 
19/01005/OUT BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL - REDDITCH 
GATEWAY, LAND ADJACENT TO THE A4023 COVENTRY 
HIGHWAY - TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION OF ACCESS ROAD 
- STOFORD GORCOTT LIMITED 

Temporary construction access road between Hedera Road and the 
Redditch Gateway (north) site

Officers presented the report and explained that the proposal was 
to create a temporary access for construction traffic to enter the site 
from Hedera Road.  The access would be used during the 
construction phase and then removed, including the hedgerow 
being reinstated.

The extant S73 permission made provision for temporary accesses 
for construction under condition 18 which set out a detailed list of 
pre-commencement requirements the developer would have to 

Page 4 Agenda Item 3



Planning
Committee Wednesday, 18 September 2019

comply with, the text of which was set out on page 35 of the 
agenda. 

RESOLVED that

1. Redditch Borough Council raise no objection to the 
application cited above; and

2. Members endorse the comments made under the 
heading “Officer Appraisal” on pages 35 to 36 of the agenda.

39. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 

RESOLVED that

under S.100 (I) of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended 
by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) 
Order 2006, the public be excluded from the meeting for the 
following matter on the grounds that it involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in the following 
paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12 (A) of the said Act as 
amended:

Paragraph 1 - Any individuals
Paragraph 2 - Identity of individuals
Paragraph 6 – Giving by the Council of a Notice

40. ENFORCEMENT REPORT - CONDITION OF PROPERTY - 
RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY IN WINYATES, REDDITCH 

Members received a report seeking approval for officers to take 
enforcement action in relation to a privately owned property in 
Winyates that was adversely affecting the amenity of the area.

RESOLVED that

In relation to a breach of planning control ( this being the 
overgrown condition of the front and rear of the property) 
authority be delegated to the Head of Legal, Equalities and 
Democratic Services, in consultation with the Head of Planning 
and Regeneration to take the following actions:-

(a) Carry out the works specified in steps 1 to 4 of the 
Section 215 Notice to tidy up the land, remove and 
dispose of resultant waste matter;

Page 5 Agenda Item 3



Planning
Committee Wednesday, 18 September 2019

(b) To instruct legal officers to take all the necessary steps 
to secure the recovery of all costs incurred by the 
placing of a charge on the property;

(c) To consider, and if appropriate, commence a 
prosecution against the landowner(s) for failure to 
comply with the requirement contained within section 
215 notice.

[During consideration of this item Members discussed matters that 
necessitated the disclosure of exempt information. It was therefore 
agreed to exclude the press and public during the course of the 
debate on the grounds that information would be revealed which 
related to individuals, identity of individuals and the giving by the 
Council of a notice.]

[In relation to this agenda item Councillor Anthony Lovell declared 
an Other Disclosable Interest in that he was familiar with the 
property and had had dealings with the local residents in his 
capacity as Ward Member for Winyates. Councillors Lovell 
remained and considered and voted on these matters.]

The Meeting commenced at 7.00 pm
and closed at 8.40 pm

Page 6 Agenda Item 3



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

PLANNING 
COMMITTEE 16th October 2019
 ______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Planning Application 
 

19/00134/FUL 
 

Provision of 14 no. self-contained supported one bedroom flats and resource hub 
(Use Class C2) and 13 no. 2 bedroom flats (Use Class C3) with associated external 
works, car parking and landscaping. 
 
Land At Junction Of Ipsley Street, Station Way And Evesham Street, Redditch, 
Worcestershire, B98 7AJ 
 
Applicant:  
Josie Bishton 
Ward: Central Ward 
  
 
(see additional papers for site plan) 

 
The author of this report is Sharron Williams, Planning Officer (DM), who can be 
contacted on Tel: 01527 534061 Email: sharron.williams@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk 
for more information. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Members endorse the revised recommendation as detailed below and the 
associated comments under the heading The Amendments. 
 
Background 
 
Members will recall that at the meeting of Redditch Borough Council on 17th July 2019, 
they resolved; 
 
That having regard to the development plan and to all other material considerations, 
authority be delegated to the head of Planning and Regeneration to GRANT planning 
permission subject to:- 
 
a) The satisfactory completion of a S106 planning obligation ensuring that: 
 

1. Contributions are paid to the Borough Council in respect to off-site open space, 
and equipped play and sport provision in accordance with the Councils adopted 
SPD. 

2. Contributions are paid to the Borough Council towards the provision of domestic 
and recycling bins for the new development in accordance with the County’s 
Waste Strategy. 

3. Contributions are paid to County Highways towards IDP contributions to mitigate 
for the additional demands on the wider transport network that the development 
will generate. Plus improvements to the nearby kerbs and bus stop located on 
Evesham Street. A contribution towards Community Transport - the establishment 

Page 7 Agenda Item 5



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

PLANNING 
COMMITTEE 16th October 2019
 ______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

of a new community car scheme which is underway in Redditch as well as 
upgrades to some of the streetlights within the vicinity of the site.  

4. Contributions are paid to NHS towards the cost of local healthcare.  
5. Affordable housing is provided as part of the scheme - 14 self-contained supported 

one bedroom flats and 13 No. shared ownership apartments. 
 
b) Conditions and informatives as summarised in the report pack. 
 

(See original report under APPENDIX A). 
 
Procedural Matters 
 
This matter is reported to members because the scheme of delegation to planning 
officers requires that: 
 
All planning decisions, actions or advice/responses on behalf of the Local Planning 
Authority cannot be dealt with under delegated powers (so must be reported to 
committee) where: 
 

 The application is for major development (more than 10 residential units) where 
the recommendation is for approval 

 

 Any application where the Council will be required to become a party to a Planning 
Legal Agreement under Section 106 

 
The Amendments 
Following the resolution of the Planning Committee on 17th July 2019, drafting of the 
associated legal mechanism has commenced.  As part of that process the off-site 
contribution towards NHS local healthcare (as detailed in criteria 4 of the resolution) has 
been considered more closely.  
 
In accordance with Paragraph 56 of the NPPF and Section 122 of the Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 2010 Regulations, a planning obligation should only be sought 
where they meet all of the relevant tests, which include; necessary to make the 
development acceptable in planning terms, being directly related to the development, and 
fairly and reasonably related in scale.  
 
Members will note that the Worcestershire Acute Hospitals Trust (NHS Trust) has 
requested a contribution that would be used directly to provide additional services to meet 
patient demand. Officers accept that the request is material. However, following legal 
advice received, the contributions requested by the NHS Trust requiring a developer to 
make annual shortfalls in National Health Service revenue are considered to be unlawful. 
Legal advice received concludes that the requests do not meet the CIL regulation 122 
tests; the requests are contrary to policy and they do not serve a planning purpose; 
and/or do not fairly and reasonably relate to the proposed development. This is on the 
basis of consideration of all information received from the Acute Hospitals Trust. 

Page 8 Agenda Item 5



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

PLANNING 
COMMITTEE 16th October 2019
 ______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 
Policy 6 of the Borough of Redditch Local Plan No 4 expects new developments of 11 or 
more dwellings to provide a 30% contribution towards the provision of affordable housing.  
As mentioned above, following the resolution of the Planning Committee on 17th July 
2019, drafting of the associated legal mechanism has commenced.  As part of that 
process affordable housing (as detailed in criteria 5 of the resolution) has been 
considered more closely. 
 
The applicant’s legal advisor has clarified that whilst their client is intending to deliver the 
site as a fully affordable site, the 106 agreement can only restrict the site in accordance 
with Council policy that being 30% of the Class C3 units on site. Officers accept that only 
30% affordable housing would be provided as part of the scheme and referred to this as 
such in the main report. However, criteria 5 of the recommendation could be interpreted 
wrongly and as such officers considered that this matter needed to be clarified. 
 
30% of the Class C3 units would be 3.9 units (round up to 4 units) would be affordable 
housing under the S106. The applicant (who is a Housing Association) has clarified that 
their intention is to provide the two pairs of maisonettes/walk up flats as Homes England 
grant funded affordable rented dwellings and the remaining block of 9 No. communal 
access flats (corner apartment block) would be shared ownership units (including 4 plots 
secured under the S106).  
 
The applicant has explained that if any affordable rent dwellings were to be secured via 
the S106, it would mean that the applicant wouldn’t be able to apply for a grant towards 
these and the affordable housing scheme would be unviable.  
 
Due to the potential ambiguity of criteria 5 of the resolution, it is considered prudent to 
advise members that 4 No. shared ownership plots within the corner plot apartment block 
would be secured under the S106 as part of the 30% affordable housing provision. 
 
Conclusion 
 
Your Officers conclude the following in relation to criteria 4 and 5:- 
 
The NHS (Worcestershire Acute Hospitals Trust) request does not meet the CIL 
regulations under application 19/00134/FUL to address the needs of residents living on 
that scheme.  It would therefore be unreasonable to seek this provision.  
 
Clarification of the provision of 30% affordable housing required for the scheme would be 
4 No. shared ownership units located within the corner apartment block. 
 
There is a need for a consequential change to the terms of the original resolution, as 
taken on 17th July 2019 and subsequently minuted. 
 

Page 9 Agenda Item 5



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

PLANNING 
COMMITTEE 16th October 2019
 ______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Criteria 4 required contributions to be paid to NHS (Worcestershire Acute Hospitals Trust) 
towards the cost of local healthcare. This contribution is now removed, as detailed in the 
revised recommendation.  
 
Criteria 5 (renumbered to be Criteria 4) 
30% affordable housing is provided as part of the scheme - 4 No. shared ownership 
apartments. 
 
Revised recommendation 

 

 Contribution to be paid to NHS (Worcestershire Acute Hospitals Trust) towards the 
cost of local healthcare to be removed from the obligation.  
 

4. 30% affordable housing is provided as part of the scheme - 4 No. shared 
ownership apartments. 
 

All other requirements as set out in criteria 1 – 3 and associated conditions and 
informatives remain. 

Page 10 Agenda Item 5



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

APPENDIX A 

PLANNING 
COMMITTEE 17th July 2019
 ______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Planning Application  19/00134/FUL 
 

Provision of 14 no. self-contained supported one bedroom flats and resource hub 
(Use Class C2) and 13 no. 2 bedroom flats (Use Class C3) with associated external 
works, car parking and landscaping. 
 
Land At Junction Of Ipsley Street, Station Way And Evesham Street, Redditch, 
Worcestershire, B98 7AJ 
 
Applicant: 

 
Josie Bishton 

Ward: Central Ward 
  

 
(see additional papers for site plan) 
 

The author of this report is Sharron Williams, Planning Officer (DM), who can be 
contacted on Tel: 01527 534061 Ext 3372 Email: 
sharron.williams@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk for more information. 
 
Site Description 
The application site is the former Liberal Club site which is a triangular area of land 
bounded by Ipsley Street, Station Way and Evesham Street. The former Liberal Club 
building has been demolished some time ago and the site has a rough surface and is 
currently being used as a car park. A number of trees exist on the site with many of them 
located close to the perimeter of the site. 
 
The site is within an area designated as the Town Centre in the Borough of Redditch 
Local Plan No.4. 
 
Proposal Description  
Permission is sought to redevelop the site and provide 13 No. 2 bed shared ownership 
apartments, a ‘My Place’ facility comprising 14 No. 1 bed supported living flats for local 
people with long term needs, and a resource/support facilities flat would be provided for 
‘My Place’ staff to assist residents. 
 
9 No. 2 bed apartments would be within a V shaped 3 storey brick/render building located 
on the southern tip of the site, whilst the ‘My Place’ facility would be provided close to the 
northern boundary adjacent to Station Way. Two separate blocks of flats would provide a 
total of 4 No. 2 bed apartments and front Ipsley Street. These flats along with the ‘My 
Place’ facility would be two storeys in height. 
 
The buildings would include a traditional pitched roof with render and brickwork for the 
walls. The design is simplified; however, later revisions submitted have provided some 
vertical attenuation. 
 

Page 11 Agenda Item 5



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

APPENDIX A 

PLANNING 
COMMITTEE 17th July 2019
 ______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Communal car parking facilities will be provided with footpath links between each 
building. Access to the car parking would be via Ipsley Street and Evesham Street. 
 
Relevant Policies : 
Borough of Redditch Local Plan No. 4 
Policy 1 Presumption in favour of Sustainable Development 
Policy 2: Settlement Hierarchy 
Policy 4: Housing Provision 
Policy 5: Effective and Efficient use of Land 
Policy 6: Affordable Housing 
Policy 17: Flood Risk Management 
Policy 19: Sustainable travel and Accessibility 
Policy 20: Transport Requirements for New Development 
Policy 22: Road Hierarchy 
Policy 30: Town Centre and Retail Hierarchy 
Policy 31: Regeneration for Town Centre 
Policy 36: Historic Environment 
Policy 37: Historic Buildings and Structures 
Policy 39: Built Environment 
Policy 40: High Quality Design and Safer Communities 
 
Others 
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework (2019) 
NPPG National Planning Practice Guidance 
Redditch High Quality Design SPD 
SPD Affordable Housing Provision 
SPD Open Space Provision 
Redditch Town Centre Strategy 
Worcestershire Waste Core Strategy 
 
Relevant Planning History   
 

1997/221/FUL 
 
 

Alterations And Conversion To Form 
Bedsits On First Floor And Staff 
Accommodation On Second Floor 
 

  08.08.1997 
 
 

  
1993/255/FUL 
 
 

Creation Of New Gateway   16.08.1993 
 
 

  
1992/137/FUL 
 
 

Alterations And Conversion To Form 9 
Bedsits On The First Floor And Staff 
Accommodation On The Second Floor 

  22.06.1992 
 
 

  

Page 12 Agenda Item 5



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

APPENDIX A 

PLANNING 
COMMITTEE 17th July 2019
 ______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Consultations 
Highways 
Have no objection to the scheme subject to conditions and financial obligations. 
 
Worcestershire Archive and Archaeological Service 
The above application site lies on the boundary between the former Ipsley parish and 
Tardebigge parish, and at the junction of two historic routeways. As such, the site is likely 
to have contained former settlement dating from the Medieval period onwards, with low 
potential for pre-Medieval settlement. Modern development may have impacted 
significantly on any below ground remains, but it is still likely that there would be islands 
of survival within the development area. 
 
On this basis, it is recommended that a programme of archaeological works should be 
secured and implemented by means of a suitably worded condition attached to any grant 
of planning permission. 
  
Education Department At Worcestershire- Alison Barnes 
The proposal as submitted is situated in the catchment area of St Georges CE First 
School, Woodfield Middle School and The Trinity High and Sixth Form Centre. St Bede's 
CE Middle School is also located less than 1 mile from the proposed development.  
 
The proposal as submitted is for a development of one and two bedroom assisted living 
accommodation. It is envisaged that this type of development is likely to yield low pupil 
numbers and will have a low impact on education infrastructure in the area. On 
conclusion, a contribution towards education infrastructure will not be sought as schools 
in the area have some surplus capacity to admit the low pupil numbers that may be 
generated from this development. 
  
WRS - Contaminated Land 
The site has been previously used as a car park which is considered a potentially 
contaminative use. Furthermore, the site is located very close to the buffer zone of a sand 
and gravel pit. Whilst the site falls just outside the buffer zone, it is considered close 
enough to warrant consideration with regards to ground gas given the scale of the 
proposed development. Whilst some site investigation has been undertaken, it is 
considered that further site investigation is required given that circa 27 dwellings are 
proposed and that suspect asbestos contamination has been reported but not quantified. 
Similarly, whilst some ground gas monitoring has been undertaken, further gas 
monitoring is required in line with current UK guidance. As such a suitable condition is 
recommended. 
 
Arboricultural Officer 
No objections to this proposed application, in relation to any tree related issues, subject 
to suitable conditions. 
  
Crime Risk Manager 
No objections or comments regarding this application. 

Page 13 Agenda Item 5



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

APPENDIX A 

PLANNING 
COMMITTEE 17th July 2019
 ______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 Town Centre Co-ordinator 
No objections. 
  
Leisure Services Manager 
No objections to the development.  However, an off-site contribution would be appropriate 
given the increase in residential accommodation in the Town Centre. 
  
Housing Strategy 
Happy with this proposal and feel that the layout makes good use of the site and meets 
the need for affordable housing in a sustainable location. 
  
Waste Management 
Domestic and recycling waste bins are required and need to be paid for by the developer. 
Entrance to the bin store areas appear to be acceptable from our point of view. 
  
North Worcestershire Water Management 
The proposed development would be located within flood zone 1 and is located within the 
Park Brook catchment. Based on the EA’s surface water flood mapping there is no 
pooling of surface water on the site. A drainage plan has been provided with the 
application, however, a drainage condition is recommended. 
  
Node URBAN DESIGN Katie Kershaw 
Overall, consider regeneration of the site will have, broadly, a positive impact on the area. 
Recommend some revisions to the initial scheme to  
• Reintroduce a sense of enclosure to the street through re-orientation of the built form, 
avoiding the over dominance of car parking. 
• Achieve a more contextual design through considering a townhouse rather than 
apartment aesthetic, introducing a higher degree of articulation, detailing, and depth to 
the façade. 
• Reconsider the relationship between hard and soft landscaping, and how positioning of 
these areas relate to the street. 
• Reconsider pedestrian access to the west of the site, and considering a more holistic 
set of pedestrian walkways to take account of access points, potentially as part of the 
landscaping scheme, to enhance the north-south movement and complement the east 
west movement around the site. 
 
NHS/Medical Infrastructure Consultations 
No Comments Received To Date   
  
NHS Acute Hospitals Worcestershire 
The existing service infrastructure for acute and planned health care is unable to meet 
the additional demand generated as a result of the proposed development of flats. A 
contribution is requested for the relevant landowner or developer to contribute towards 
the cost of health care provision directly related to the development proposals and is fairly 
and reasonably related in scale and kind. 
 

Page 14 Agenda Item 5



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

APPENDIX A 

PLANNING 
COMMITTEE 17th July 2019
 ______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Conservation Officer 
The flats will be constructed in a mix of red brick and colour through render beneath 
pitched grey concrete tiled roofs. 
 
To the south of the site is the locally listed Black Horse Public House building, although it 
would not appear to be in use as a pub. It comprises several buildings, possibly originally 
cottages combined into one use, dating back in part to the 18th century, although there is 
apparently evidence of timber framing inside.  
 
The applicant has submitted a very detailed Heritage Statement which examines the 
archaeological and historic development of the area, and the damage caused to the area 
following the 1980s redevelopment of the centre of Redditch. 
 
Policy 36.2 of the Redditch Local Plan No.4 requires, non-designated heritage assets and 
their settings to be conserved and enhanced in a manner appropriate to their significance 
and contribution to the historic environment. While paragraph 192 of the NPPF requires 
local authorities to take account of 'the desirability of new development making a positive 
contribution to local character and distinctiveness.  
 
The redevelopment of this site is welcomed, as it is clearly an eyesore and detracts from 
the setting of the locally listed building. The proposed scheme in terms of local character 
and therefore the setting of the locally listed building is disappointing. The architecture is 
generic and can be found anywhere, and has none of the character or detailing of the 
surrounding buildings 19th century buildings where red brick predominates.  
 
Worcestershire Wildlife Trust 
Do not object to the proposed development but recommend ecological conditions.  
 
NHS Mark Fenton Associate Director, Estates & Facilities Man 
No Comments Received To Date   
 
Public Consultation Response 
1 letter of comment referring to supporting documents submitted and use of S106 
contributions to be used in local areas. 
 
Assessment of Proposal 
Principle of development 
The site falls within an area designated as the Town Centre in the Borough of Redditch 
Local Plan No. 4. Policy 31 would be applicable to this site and encourages the increase 
of residential accommodation in the Town Centre.  
 
The site itself is mainly within a mixed use area comprising residential/offices/ shops etc. 
it is considered that the principle of residential use on the site is considered to be 
acceptable and would not conflict with the current neighbouring uses/activities close to  
site. 
 

Page 15 Agenda Item 5



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

APPENDIX A 

PLANNING 
COMMITTEE 17th July 2019
 ______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Density of Development 
The site is approximately 0.3 hectares in area with 27 units of accommodation proposed 
(excluding the resource/admin flat); representing a density of approx. 90dph.  
The 2019 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) requires local planning authorities 
and developers to make effective use of previously-developed land, especially if this 
would help to meet identified needs for housing where land supply is constrained. Section 
11 of the Framework emphasises the importance of making effective use of land, and 
with respect to density, Para 123 comments that "Where there is an existing or 
anticipated shortage of land for meeting identified housing needs, it is especially 
important that planning policies and decisions avoid homes being built at low densities, 
and ensure that developments make optimal use of the potential of each site." The 
paragraph also states that local planning authorities should refuse applications which 
they consider fail to make efficient use of land. 
 
Policy 5 of Local Plan No.4 (Effective and efficient use of land) encourages densities of 
70 dwellings per hectare within the Town Centre and District Centres. It then goes on to 
say that higher densities will be sought in locations close to public transport interchanges.  
 
Taking into account that the site is within the Town Centre and is adjacent to public 
transport routes as well as the bus and railway station, it is considered that a higher 
density scheme would be appropriate and acceptable in this location, and as such the 
proposal complies with Policy 5 of Local Plan No.4 and the NPPF. 
 
Scale 
The scales of the buildings are generally 2 storeys and 3 storeys for the V shaped 
apartment block. The positioning of the V shaped building on the southern tip of the site 
offers something of a landmark building to ground the scheme in the area and 
complements the scale of the Victorian terraced properties close by. 
 
Layout and appearance 
Since the submission of the initial plans for the scheme and following on from comments 
submitted by the Urban Designer and Conservation Advisor, amendments have been 
made to the scheme resulting in a scheme that now respects the historic context of the 
surrounding buildings. 
 
Amendments to the scheme include:- 

 Alteration to the layout of the boundary treatment to the west of the ‘My Place’ with 
the addition of railings to the frontage to the northern end of Evesham Street. 

 Change of 1.8m close boarded fence to 1.5 fence with 300mm trellis around the 
sides and rear of the ‘My Place’, to create a more permeable and attractive 
boundary treatment under the trees. 

 Improvements to footpath links within the site. 

 Alterations to the design of the front elevation of the ‘My Place’ building:- Reducing 
the extent of the render and creation of two smaller secondary gable features, to 
provide a more vertical emphasis as well as an introduction of half rendering to the 
end gables 

Page 16 Agenda Item 5



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

APPENDIX A 

PLANNING 
COMMITTEE 17th July 2019
 ______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 In respect to the V shaped apartment block: - There has been an introduction of 
deeper windows to the bedrooms, creating a modern interpretation of the Victorian 
window proportions. Re-design of the gable features to create a narrower gable 
and introduce a vertical emphasis with less render contained between a projecting 
brick cheek detail. Incorporation of additional gable features to both sides, again 
contained by the brick cheek detail, providing a reference to the double gables on 
a number of the older buildings that surround the site. Lowering of the eaves to the 
wing blocks, to emphasise the corner. Hipped end to the wing blocks, to reduce 
the scale of these ends of the building. 

 2 storey Apartments: - Introduction of the deeper windows to the bedrooms, again 
creating a modern interpretation of the Victorian window proportions. Re-design to 
the gable features to create a narrower gable with a vertical emphasis with less 
render which is contained between a projecting brick cheek detail. 

 Materials, a Blue Black Fibre Cement Slate is now proposed in place of the original 
grey concrete tiles, in order to blend the scheme in with surrounding properties. 

 The Landscape Concept Plan has also been updated and shows the planting 
strategy, the location of the new hedges behind the metal railings at back of 
pavement and the bulb planting under the existing trees, which will provide some 
seasonal colour and interest both in the public domain to the Ipsley Street and 
Evesham Street frontages as well as the private amenity space for the resident of 
the My Pace building. 
 

The revisions made to the scheme go some way to address concerns initially raised by 
the Conservation Advisor and the Urban Designer. Officers consider the revisions to the 
scheme as acceptable and would be in accordance with the aspirations of the Councils 
SPD in terms of High Quality Design. 
 
Highway matters 
Policy 19 of the Local Plan No. 4 (Sustainable Travel and Accessibility) focuses on the 
need to reduce private car use and increase the use of public transport. The County's 
'Streetscape Design Guide' states that "for both residential and commercial developments 
in town and city centres the applicant may choose not to provide car parking spaces at 
all. Consideration must be given to the opportunity to access the site sustainably, the 
availability and capacity of public car parks, existing parking restrictions, the number of 
linked trips and the implementation of an approved Travel Plan or welcome pack." 
 
24 car parking spaces are shown on the plans and this is less than what is required for 
the scale of the development. However, supporting details submitted by the applicant 
clarifies that residents using the ‘My Place’ will not generally have a car although some 
provision will be available for visitors etc. A reduction in car parking is proposed with the 2 
bedroom apartments having 1 car space per unit. Taking into consideration that the site is 
in the Town Centre with good public transport links and compelling arguments put 
forward by the agent, the reduction in car parking provision is acceptable in this location. 
County Highways consider the scheme to be acceptable and recommend conditions. 
 
 

Page 17 Agenda Item 5



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

APPENDIX A 

PLANNING 
COMMITTEE 17th July 2019
 ______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Landscaping 
The scheme proposes to retain as much of the existing boundary tree planting although 
some trees will need to be removed to enable development. Landscape has no 
objections to the scheme. 
Drainage 
Some drainage details have been submitted for the scheme, however, NWWM do not 
raise any objections to the application and recommend the imposition of a drainage 
condition.  
 
Residential amenity considerations 
No objections have been submitted and it is considered that the scheme would not hinder 
amenities of existing occupiers. 
 
Sustainability 
The application site is located within easy walking distance of Redditch Town Centre 
which provides the expected wide range of commercial, retail and leisure facilities. It is 
also within a few minutes' walk of the Town's rail and bus stations. The proposed 
residential development therefore benefits from the NPPF’s "presumption in favour of 
sustainable development" and also complies with the NPPF’s objective of significantly 
boosting the supply of housing in this area. 
 
In addition, the scheme meets the NPPF requirements to make "effective use" of under-
utilised land, with the proposed density of redevelopment reflecting the site's highly 
sustainable location. 
 
Members will be aware that the Council cannot demonstrate a 5 year supply of housing 
land within the Borough. Para. 11 of the NPPF say that in such circumstances relevant 
policies for the supply of housing should not be considered up-to-date. The so called 
tilted balance as advocated by the NPPF is engaged and the presumption in favour of 
sustainable development applies. Where relevant policies are out of date, Para. 11 
advises that permission should be granted unless any adverse impacts of doing so would 
significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits when assessed against the policies 
in the Framework taken as a whole.  Therefore, significant weight should be afforded to 
the fact that the scheme would make a meaningful contribution to the Councils housing 
figures where the Council cannot demonstrate a 5 year supply of housing land as 
required under the NPPF. 
 
Planning obligations 
Contributions are required for the scale of the development proposed. This would be 
sought via a planning obligation and cover the following matters: 
 
Open space 
Contributions towards off site open space provision due to increase demand from future 
residents, required in compliance with the SPD. In this case, a contribution to support 
improvements to the public open space / play area at Glover Street. For sports 

Page 18 Agenda Item 5



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

APPENDIX A 

PLANNING 
COMMITTEE 17th July 2019
 ______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

improvements, a need has been identified by Worcestershire Cricket Board for 
infrastructure developments at Redditch Cricket Club ground on Bromsgrove Road. 
 
Waste 
Contributions for refuse and re-cycling bins for the new development in accordance with 
Policy WCS.17 of the adopted Worcestershire Waste Core Strategy. 
 
Highways 
Contributions towards the Infrastructure Delivery Plan to mitigate for the additional 
demands on the wider transport and localised improvements. 
 
Affordable housing 
Policy 6 of Local Plan No.4 requires the provision of 30% affordable housing on sites of 
11 or more dwellings, incorporating a mix of tenure types. Due to the nature of the 
development, the scheme would be providing a supported housing scheme and shared 
ownership apartments in this area of the Town Centre. As such the scheme meets the 
needs for affordable housing in a sustainable location and is supported by Housing 
Strategy.  
 
NHS 
Worcestershire Acute Hospitals NHS Trust have requested a contribution based on 
evidence that the existing, ageing population and future population growth will require 
additional healthcare infrastructure to enable it to continue to meet the acute and 
community healthcare needs of the local population.  
 
The applicant is agreeable to contributions for the matters set out above. 
 
Conclusion 
The site is ideally located for residential redevelopment being located within easy walking 
distance of Redditch bus station, train station and the wide range of facilities within the 
Town Centre. The application therefore benefits from the NPPF's presumption in favour 
of sustainable development and complies with Local Plan Policy 5 in respect to high 
density development. 
 
The scheme would be a high density development that would create a vibrant and 
attractive scheme in this area of the Town. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
That having regard to the development plan and to all other material 
considerations, authority be delegated to the head of Planning and Regeneration to 
GRANT planning permission subject to:- 
 

a) The satisfactory completion of a S106 planning obligation ensuring that: 

 

Page 19 Agenda Item 5



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

APPENDIX A 

PLANNING 
COMMITTEE 17th July 2019
 ______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

• Contributions are paid to the Borough Council in respect to off-site open 
space, and equipped play and sport provision in accordance with the 
Councils adopted SPD. 

• Contributions are paid to the Borough Council towards the provision of 
domestic and recycling bins for the new development in accordance with the 
County’s Waste Strategy. 

• Contributions are paid to County Highways towards IDP contributions to 
mitigate for the additional demands on the wider transport network that the 
development will generate. Plus improvements to the nearby kerbs and bus 
stop located on Evesham Street. A contribution towards Community 
Transport - the establishment of a new community car scheme which is 
underway in Redditch as well as upgrades to some of the streetlights within 
the vicinity of the site.  

• Contributions are paid to NHS towards the cost of local healthcare.  
• Affordable housing is provided as part of the scheme - 14 self-contained 

supported one bedroom flats and 13 No. shared ownership apartments. 
 
b) Conditions and informatives as summarised below: 

 
Conditions: 
1) The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later than the 

expiration of three years beginning with the date of the grant of this permission. 
  

Reason:- In accordance with the requirements of Section 91(1) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 
2) The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with plans 

and drawings to be specified. 
  

REASON: To provide certainty to the extent of the development hereby approved 
in the interests of proper planning. 

 
3) Prior to their first installation, details of the form, colour and finish of the materials 

to be used externally on the walls and roofs shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The materials to be approved shall be 
similar to those cited in Facing Materials Schedule Job No. 201806  Rev. B May 
2019. The development shall then be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details. 

 
Reason: To ensure that the development is satisfactory in appearance, to 
safeguard the visual amenities of the area. 

 
4) The Development hereby approved shall not be occupied until the first 5 metres of 

the access into the development, measured from the edge of the carriageway, has 
been surfaced in a bound material.  

Page 20 Agenda Item 5



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

APPENDIX A 

PLANNING 
COMMITTEE 17th July 2019
 ______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
5) The Development hereby approved shall not be occupied until an area has been 

laid out within the curtilage of the proposed development for the parking of 24 cars 
(Inc. 2 disabled bays) at a gradient not exceeding 1 in 8. This area shall thereafter 
be retained for the purpose of parking a vehicle only.  

 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to ensure the free flow of traffic 
using the adjoining highway. 

 
6) The Development hereby permitted shall not be first occupied until the proposed 

development has been fitted with 2 electric vehicle charging point in accordance 
with details that shall first be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority and thereafter the charging point shall be kept available for the 
charging of electric vehicles. 

 
Reason: To encourage sustainable travel and healthy communities. 

 
7) The Development hereby permitted shall not be first occupied until sheltered and 

secure cycle parking to comply with the Council's adopted highway design guide 
has been provided in accordance with details which shall first be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and thereafter the approved 
cycle parking shall be kept available for the parking of bicycles only. 

 
Reason: To comply with the Council's parking standards. 

 
8) The Development hereby approved shall not be occupied until the access, parking 

and turning facilities have been provided as shown on drawing: 
201806 Site Plan 10E 

 
Reason:  To ensure conformity with summited details. 

 
9) Unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority development, other than 

that required to be carried out as part of an approved scheme of remediation, must 
not commence until conditions 1 to 5 have been complied with: 
1. Previous reports submitted to the Local Authority in support of the application 
has identified unacceptable risk(s) exist on the site as represented in the 
Conceptual Site Model. A scheme for detailed site investigation must be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to being 
undertaken to address those unacceptable risks identified. The scheme must be 
designed to assess the nature and extent of any contamination and must be led by 
the findings of the preliminary risk assessment. The investigation and risk 
assessment scheme must be compiled by competent persons and must be 
designed in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency’s “Model 
Procedures for the Management of Contaminated Land, CLR11” 
 

Page 21 Agenda Item 5



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

APPENDIX A 

PLANNING 
COMMITTEE 17th July 2019
 ______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

2. Detailed site investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken and a 
written report of the findings produced. This report must be approved by the Local 
Planning Authority prior to any development taking place. The investigation and 
risk assessment must be undertaken by competent persons and must be 
conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency’s “Model 
Procedures for the Management of Contaminated Land, CLR11” 
 
3. Where identified as necessary a detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to 
a condition suitable for the intended use by removing unacceptable risks to 
identified receptors must be prepared and is subject to the approval of the Local 
Planning Authority in advance of undertaking. The remediation scheme must 
ensure that the site will not qualify as Contaminated Land under Part 2A 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the intended use of the land after 
remediation. 
 
4. The approved remediation scheme must be carried out in accordance with its 
terms prior to the commencement of development, other than that required to carry 
out remediation, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 
5. Following the completion of the measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme a validation report that demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation 
carried out must be produced, and is subject to the approval of the Local Planning 
Authority prior to the occupation of any buildings. 
 
6. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the 
approved development that was not previously identified it must be reported in 
writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An investigation and risk 
assessment must be undertaken and where necessary a remediation scheme 
must be prepared, these will be subject to the approval of the Local Planning 
Authority. Following the completion of any measures identified in the approved 
remediation scheme a validation report must be prepared, which is subject to the 
approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority prior to the occupation of any 
buildings. 
 
Reason:- To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 
land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled 
waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can 
be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other 
offsite receptors. 

 
10) No development above foundation level of the scheme hereby approved shall take 

place until a scheme for surface and foul water drainage has been submitted to, 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include 
the results of an assessment into the potential of disposing of surface water by 
means of a sustainable drainage system (SuDS) and shall provide an appropriate 

Page 22 Agenda Item 5



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

APPENDIX A 

PLANNING 
COMMITTEE 17th July 2019
 ______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

level of runoff attenuation and treatment. The approved scheme shall be 
completed prior to the first use of the development hereby approved. 

 
Reason: In order to ensure satisfactory drainage conditions that will not create or 
exacerbate flood risk on site or within the surrounding local area. 

 
11) No development shall take place until a programme of archaeological work 

including a Written Scheme of Investigation, has been submitted to and approved 
by the local planning authority in writing. The scheme shall include an assessment 
of significance and research questions; and: 
a) The programme and methodology of site investigation and recording. 
b) The programme for post investigation assessment. 
c) Provision to be made for analysis of the site investigation and recording. 
d) Provision to be made for publication and dissemination of the analysis and 
records of the site investigation 
e) Provision to be made for archive deposition of the analysis and records of the 
site investigation 
f) Nomination of a competent person or persons/organisation to undertake the 
works set out within the Written Scheme of Investigation. 

 
The development shall not be occupied until the site investigation and post 
investigation assessment has been completed in accordance with the programme 
set out in the Written Scheme of Investigation approved under condition (1) and 
the provision made for analysis, publication and dissemination of results and 
archive deposition has been secured. 

 
Reason: In accordance with the requirements of paragraph 199 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework. 

  
 12) No demolition, site clearance or development shall take place until all trees and 

hedges and their root protection areas (RPA) to be retained on the site must be 
protected during clearance and construction phase in accordance with 
BS5837:2012 and shall remain in situ for the duration of the development.  

  
Reason:-To ensure the protection of trees and hedgerows in the interests of visual 
amenity. 

  
13) No development above foundation level of the scheme hereby approved shall take 

place until all hard and soft landscaping details have been submitted to and 
agreed by the Local Planning Authority. The approved works shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details.  The works shall be carried out prior to the 
occupation of any part of the development or in accordance with a programme 
agreed in writing by the local planning authority.  Any trees or plants which within a 
period of 5 years from the completion of the development die, are removed or 
become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting 

Page 23 Agenda Item 5



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

APPENDIX A 

PLANNING 
COMMITTEE 17th July 2019
 ______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

season with others of similar sizes or species unless the local planning authority 
gives written approval to any variation. 

   
 Reason:- In the interests of the visual amenity of the area. 
 
14)  Appropriate ecology condition(s) in accordance with BS42020:2013 Biodiversity - 

Code of practice for planning and development. 
 
Procedural matters  
This application is being reported to the Planning Committee because the application is a 
major residential development and includes a S106 Agreement. As such the application 
falls outside the scheme of delegation to Officers. 
 

 
 

 

Page 24 Agenda Item 5



2

3

7
1

4

6

8

9

Kingfisher

Car Park

Hall

44

52

47

5
1

58

6
4

8
0

7
8

6
0

6
2

5
0

74

6
8

19

9
1

16

5
9

54

1
4

7
7

6
3

4
5

56

46

37

1
3

38

76

10 12

18

2
4

32

6
1

53

6
5

36

49

55

6
9

41

25

7
0

67

3
3

2
1

26

73

Builders Yard

1
1

SA

Court

Square

LB

FB

142

1
0
5

1
0
7

Walter

Subway

PH

11
4

11
9

1
1
0

Milward

Town Hall

Oswald House

The

SO
U
TH

 S
TR

EET

W
EST STR

EET

MOUNT STREET

O
R
CH

AR
D
 S

TR
EET

LUDLOW ROAD

IPSLEY STREET

Orchard Place

S
IL

V
E

R
 S

T
R

E
E

T

Mews

W
a

lf
o

r d
 W

a
lk

O
S

W
A

L
D

 S
T

R
E

E
T

BEAUFORT STREET

REDDITCH RINGWAY
W

E
S
T A

V
E
N

U
EM

O
U

N
T
 P

L
E

A
S

A
N

T

O
A

K
L
Y

 R
O

A
D

10

6
3

3
6

45

LB

64

56

1
3

69

2

19

2

6

12

8

R
E

D
D

IT
C

H
 R

IN
G

W
A

Y

4

45

61

9
1

51

2

1
6

1
8

Hall

2

59

18

1
6

4
9

4 6

2

5
8

5
9

16

61

6

9

14

1

3

Shopping Centre

27

7
4

7
2

5
4

56

28

33

9
8

to

Multistorey

Multistorey

140

Evesham

Stranz

Dingleside

11
6

Smallwood

Park Walk

Almshouses

E
v

e
s

h
a

m
 W

a
l k

E
v

e
s

h
a

m
 W

a
l k

C
L

A
R

K
E

 S
T

R
E

E
T

Larchwood House

Aspenwood House

E
V

E
S

H
A

M
 S

T
R

E
E

T

Terryspring

1 to 3

5 
to

 9

STATION WAY

1 
to

 1
6

Garage

W
orks

Hotel

146.0m

131.1m

121.9m

139.0m

139.3m

144.5m

128.0m

122.5m

122.5m

Depot

Depot

14
 to

 2
6

4
6

 t
o

 4
8

12 to
 18

Oakley

1
4
4
 to

 1
4
8

Arden

Shelters

Rhianfa

Citadel

Warehouse

Anchorage

House
Ludlow

T
h
e 

D
ri

v
e

El Sub Sta

El Sub Sta

El Sub Sta

G
e
o

rg
e
 W

a
lk

Estate House

Evesham Mews (above) ED & Ward Bdy

E
D

 &
 W

a
rd

 B
d

y

Walford House (above)

of Jehovahs Witnesses

C
a

n
o

n
 N

e
w

to
n

 H
o

u
s

e
 (

a
b

o
v

e
)

Sandycroft

Kingdom Hall

The Cotswolds

Barnscroft

Youth and Com
m

unity Centre

GLOVER STREET

(1 to 12a)

4 to
 11

1 to
 12

Posts

2
0

1

Subway

Car Park

3

3

S
I L

V
E

R
 S

T
R

E
E

T

11
Car Park

4
4

2

Square

1

LB

7

50

4

5
0

Car Park

6
4

10

1
2

Square

Land at Junction of Ipsley Street, Station Way & Evesham Street

19/00134/FULPlanning & Regeneration
Town Hall

Walter Stranz Hall Square
Redditch
B98 8AH 16/10/19

®

Page 25 Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Confirmation of Minutes of the Planning Committee held on 18th September 2019
	5 Application 19/00134/FUL - Land at Junction of Ipsley Street, Station Way and Evesham Street, Redditch, Worcestershire, B98 7AJ - J. Bishton
	Appendix A - 19-00134-FUL - Ipsley Street
	site plan 19-00134




